

Page **1** of **6**

Community Centrum: Grand Bay Room – Televised Meeting for the Public

1. Call to Order

Mayor Merrifield called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.

2. Acknowledgement of Treaty Land

We respectfully acknowledge that Grand Bay-Westfield exists on the traditional Wolastoqey (WOOL-US-TOOK-WAY) land.

The lands of Wabanaki (WAH-BAH-NAH-KEE) people are recognized in a series of Peace and Friendship Treaties to establish an ongoing relationship of peace, friendship and mutual respect between equal nations.

The river that runs by our town is known as Wolastoq (WOOL-LUSS-TOOK), along which live Wolastoqiyik (WOOL-US-TOO-GWEEG) - the people of the beautiful and bountiful river.

We, the staff and elected representatives, pay respect to the elders, past and present, and descendants of this land.

3. Mayor's Comments

4. Record of Attendance

Mayor Merrifield, Councillor Balemans, Deputy Mayor Toole, Councillor Balcomb, Councillor Day and Councillor McIntosh Lawrence in attendance.

Staff Attendance: Bruce Gault, Gary Clark, Troy Gautreau, John Enns-Wind, Greg Yeomans and Heather Shannon

5. Agenda Approval

That the Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield approve the Agenda of November 22, 2021 as presented.

Motioned by: Councillor Balcomb

Seconded by: Councillor Balemans

Carried

6. Disclosure of Conflict of Interest

None

G:\Wpdoc\COUNCIL\2021\Minutes 11-22-21

ADOPTED
DEC 1 3 2021



Page 2 of 6

7. Public Hearings/Presentations/Delegations/Petitions

8. Minutes of Previous Meeting

a) Regular Council Minutes of November 8, 2021

That the Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield adopt the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 8, 2021 as presented.

Motioned by: Deputy Mayor Toole

Seconded by: Councillor Day

Carried

b) Special Meeting of Council November 16, 2021

That the Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield adopt the Minutes of the Special Meeting of Council held November 16, 2021 as presented.

Motioned by: Councillor Day

Seconded by: Councillor Balcomb

Carried

9. Unfinished Business

None

10. Bylaws

a) Zoning By-law Amendment #122A

Third Reading (by title) and Enactment

ZONING BY-LAW 122A, AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING BY-LAW

That the Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield approve the Third Reading, by Title and Enactment of Zoning By-Law 122A, Amendment to the Zoning By-law.

Motioned by: Councillor McIntosh Lawrence

Seconded by: Councillor Day

Carried

Zoning By-law No 122 Amendment was Read by Title and enacted.



Page 3 of 6

b) Traffic By-law Amendment 80H

Third Reading (by title) and Enactment

TRAFFIC BY-LAW AMENDMENT 80H, AMENDMENT TO THE TRAFFIC BY-LAW

That the Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield approve the Third Reading, by Title and Enactment of Traffic By-law Amendment 80H, Amendment to the Traffic By-law.

Motioned by: Deputy Mayor Toole

Seconded by: Councillor McIntosh Lawrence

Carried

Traffic By-law Amendment 80H was Read by Title and Enacted.

c) Sanitary Wastewater System By-Law Amendment, By-Law #20A

Third Reading (by title) and Enactment

SANITARY WASTEWATER SYSTEM BY-LAW AMENDMENT, BY-LAW #20A

That the Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield approve the Third Reading, by Title and Enactment of Sanitary Wastewater System By-Law Amendment, By-Law #20A.

Motioned by: Deputy Mayor Toole

Seconded by: Councillor Day

Carried

Sanitary Wastewater By-law Amendment #20A was Read by Title and Enacted.

d) Subdivision By-law 123

First Reading (By Title):

SUBDIVISION BY-LAW 123

Motioned by: Councillor McIntosh Lawrence

Seconded by: Councillor Day

Carried

Second Reading (by TITLE)

SUBDIVISION BY-LAW 123

Motioned by: Councillor McIntosh Lawrence

Seconded by: Councillor Day

Carried



Page 4 of 6

11. New Business/Recommendations

a) Christmas Parade Road Closures

That the Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield authorize road closures on Nerepis Road between the Route 102 "flashing Lights" and Brittain Road and along Brittain Road, crossing the railway to the Bridge, to permit participation with the Christmas Parade, starting at 1 pm from the "Four Corners" (Brittain Road and Campbell Road) on Sunday, December 12, 2021; following Provincial Covid 19 protocols requiring 2 m distancing between groups in Outdoor informal gatherings with Confirmation, approvals from notifications to the RCMP, DTI, Ambulance NB and the Fire / Rescue Department, to ensure continuity of emergency services.

Motioned by: Councillor Balcomb

Seconded by: Councillor Day

Carried

b) LGR White Paper

That the Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield continue to advocate for changes while permitted and determine if there are other aspects of the White Paper that may be adapted to Grand Bay-Westfield in a manner not first considered.

Motioned by: Deputy Mayor Toole

Seconded by: Councillor Balemans

Carried

12. Bills for Payment

a) That the Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield authorize the November 22, 2021 bills for payment as presented in the amount for \$67,381.97.

Motioned by: Councillor McIntosh Lawrence

Seconded by: Councillor Balcomb

Carried



Page 5 of 6

13. Consent Agenda

a) Thank You Letter – Envision Saint John

That the Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield receive and file the Thank You letter received from Envision Saint John.

b) Thank You Letter – Grand Bay Primary

That the Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield receive and file the Thank You letter received from Grand Bay Primary.

c) Thank You Letter – Inglewood School

That the Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield receive and file the Thank You letter received from Inglewood School.

d) Certificate of Appreciation – The Royal Canadian Legion

That the Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield receive and file the Certificate of Appreciation received from the Royal Canadian Legion.

e) UMNB 2022 Membership Letter

That the Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield receive and file the UMNB 2022 Membership Letter.

f) Policing Budget 2022 – Government of New Brunswick

That the Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield receive and file the 2022 Policing Budget received from the Government of New Brunswick.

g) Town of Grand Bay-Westfield Reports for Council

That the Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield receive and file the reports for Council.

h) Letter – Minister Allain

That the Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield receive and file the letter received from Minister Allain.

End of Consent Agenda

14. Council Reports

15. Business Arising from Committee of the Whole



Page 6 of 6

16. Adjournment

That the Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield adjourned the meeting at 8:21 pm.

Motioned by: Councillor Day

Seconded by: Councillor Balemans

Carried

John Enns-Wind

CAO

Brittany Merrifield

Mayor



ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT

Vision: A welcoming place to live, grow and thrive **Mission:** Facilitating growth, wellness, and prosperity through effective and forward-thinking leadership.

Council Meeting: November 22, 2021 Date: 11/17/21

TITLE: CHRISTMAS PARADE ROUTE ROAD CLOSURES (NEREPIS ROAD & BRITTAIN ROAD)

PREPARED BY: DEVELOPMENT OFFICER

DEPARTMENT: PLANNING

FOR INFORMATION \square FOR DISCUSSION \square FOR DECISION \boxtimes

RELATED TO STRATEGIC PLAN:

Community Vitality

BACKGROUND

Please find attached:

1. Copy of email request received from Lorraine Gibson on November 17, 2021.

COMMENT

A request has been made to participate in a Community Christmas Parade to be held on Sunday December 12, 2021, starting at 1:00 p.m. The Parade route would begin at the "Four Corners" (Brittain Road and Campbell Road); continue south along Campbell Road, turning right onto Route 102, then right again onto Route 177 heading north, returning the place of beginning, along the Brittain Road. As setout under section 6 of the Traffic By-law No. 80, where Council approves to temporarily close street lanes for the specified periods, it would be subject to approvals from RCMP and DTI. Notification to NB Southern Railway, Ambulance New Brunswick and the Fire / Rescue Department is also advised to ensure emergency services are aware of the event and potential obstacles.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Council for the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield authorize road closures on Nerepis Road and Brittain Road for participation with the Community Christmas Parade to be held on Sunday December 12, 2021.

MOTION

That the Council for the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield authorize road closures on Nerepis Road between the Route 102 "flashing Lights" and Brittain Road and along Brittain Road, crossing the railway to the Bridge, to permit participation with the Christmas Parade, starting at 1 pm from the "Four Corners" (Brittain Road and Campbell Road) on Sunday, December 12, 2021; following Provincial Covid 19 protocols requiring 2 m distancing between groups in Outdoor informal gatherings with Confirmation, approvals from notifications to the RCMP, DTI, Ambulance NB and the Fire / Rescue Department, to ensure continuity of emergency services.

CAO COMMENTS

APPROVAL

Department Head: Date: 11/17/21

CAO: pol donal Date: 11/18/21



ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT

Vision: A welcoming place to live, grow and thrive

Mission: Facilitating growth, wellness, and prosperity through effective and forward-thinking leadership.

Council Meeting: November 22, 2021 Date: 11/19/21

TITLE: LGR WHITE PAPER

PREPARED BY: JOHN ENNS-WIND

DEPARTMENT: GENERAL GOVERNMENT

For Information \square For Discussion \boxtimes For Decision \square

RELATED TO STRATEGIC PLAN:

Legislative

ATTACHMENTS:

- 1. Working Together for Vibrant and Sustainable Communities: White Paper
- 2. Council Submission: June 2021
- 3. Admin Report: January 2021
- 4. Admin Report: April 2021 (recommendations were submitted to Vibrant NB)
- 5. Admin Report: June 2021

BACKGROUND

Minister Allain released the Working Together for Vibrant and Sustainable Communities: White Paper November 18th. It is a comprehensive document outlining the changes and the timeline for implementation. Many of the changes are to be implemented in 2023 with 2022 being a year of transition. The latest change to be implemented will be in 2027 with all entities to have Land Use Plans. A summary of the changes that are relevant to Grand Bay-Westfield follow.

Summary

Pillar 1 - Local Governance Structure

- 78 local governments
- 12 rural districts
- The Local Governance Act is amended to modify the process for future restructuring projects, including the removal of the requirements for a plebiscite.
- Roads located in previous local service districts remain the responsibility of the
 provincial government, whether the local service district is restructured with a local
 government or becomes part of a rural district. The Department of Transportation
 and Infrastructure will work with local governments on priorities in these areas.
- A full proposal on an independent municipal commission is considered by the provincial government in 2022 with an anticipated implementation in 2024.
- Local governments are required to report annually on viability criteria starting in 2024 for the fiscal year ending in 2023.
- The provincial government consults with all stakeholders and interested parties to explore allowing permanent residents to vote in municipal elections.
- Current Councils will sit for a term of five years finishing in 2026.
 - Councillor(s) elected in the byelection for those communities affected by boundary adjustments are to be elected in November 2022.

Pillar 2 - Regional Collaboration

- Expanded mandate of regional service commissions include:
 - Economic development
 - Tourism promotion
 - Community development
 - Regional transportation (community transit)
 - Recreational infrastructure cost-sharing
 - Social focus
- Regional service commissions have a mandate to establish a Public Safety committee with roles related to:
 - Policing
 - Fire protection
 - Emergency measures planning.
 - The province will be reviewing the best way to deliver policing in the province.
- Representation on the boards of the regional service commissions is as follows:
 - Mayors
 - Elected chairs of the rural district advisory committees
 - A weighted voting formula will be amended to improve the operation of boards and reflect a democratic balance.
- Regional service commissions are required to develop a comprehensive regional strategy that identifies the strengths and gaps in the region and establish priorities and actions, especially with respect to additional mandated functions.
- Service standards are created in partnership with the regional service commissions and reported on publicly starting in 2024.

Pillar 3 - Land Use Planning

- Statements of public interest will be enabled in a regulation under the Community Planning Act by January 1, 2023. Local governments and rural districts have five years to bring land use plans into compliance with the new statements of public interest.
- Local governments can voluntarily adopt an inclusionary zoning bylaw. A regulation outlines how a local government may prepare an inclusionary zoning by-law.
 - An inclusionary zoning bylaw (https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Inclusionary_zoning):
 - Inclusionary housing programs are municipal programs that use the development regulations and approval process to oblige private developers to provide a portion of affordable housing within their new market projects.
 - Inclusionary zoning (IZ), also known as inclusionary housing, refers to municipal and county planning ordinances that require a given share of new construction to be affordable by people with low to moderate incomes. The term inclusionary zoning indicates that these ordinances seek to counter

exclusionary zoning practices, which aim to exclude low-cost housing from a municipality through the zoning code.

- There is a direction to centralize land use planning within the regional service commission. Included are possible penalties should municipalities opt out.
- Local governments and regional service commissions are required to consult with the provincial government on regional, municipal, and rural plans and zoning bylaws. The provincial government is required to consider land use plans and zoning by-laws.

Pillar 4 - Financing local governance

- Local governments have the flexibility to set local non-residential property tax rates within a range of 1.4 to 1.7 times the residential rate.
- A new grant formula ensures the communities that need support receive adequate funding, while those that are viable and financially stronger are not recipients of equalization funding.
- The provincial government works with municipal associations on a revenue sharing proposal for revenues from fines.
- Development of vacant and under-utilized properties within the boundaries of business improvement areas are incentivized and more regular assessments are considered for downtown properties and industrial parks.
- Contribution limits and public financial reporting requirements exist for candidates running in municipal elections before the next municipal general elections.

New Boundaries

The boundaries of the Town are being adjusted. At this time the specific boundary is not known. However, in general terms the Town is being given 75% of the LSD of Westfield West. The assumption is that the eastern boundary is located around Public Landing with how far north the ribbon expands is not known. Also included is the area surrounding Brittain Road and Campbell Road with the assumption that the northern part of the area is inline with the current northern boundary of the Town on Route #177.

The change of the Town is outlined in the following Table.

Table #1: Implications of Boundary Adjustments

	Population	Tax Base	
Current	4964	\$435,513,300	
New	6436	\$512,589,700	
Difference	1472	\$77,076,400	
Ratio	30%	18%	

Summary of Town Participation

The Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield has had numerous opportunities to participate.

• Both Councils of 2021 have met with Minister Allain.

- Both Councils made submissions.
- Former Mayor Losier was on an advisory committee.
- The current Council met with the Deputy Minister of Local Government and Local Government Reform.
- Council and the CAO have attended consultation meetings with other municipalities and interested persons from LSDs.
- Council and the CAO have attended information sessions provided by UMNB.
- Council and the CAO have discussed local government reform, formally and informally, with their colleagues in the region and across the province.
- Council and the CAO have met with the MLA regarding local government reform.

COMMENT

Local government reform is an endeavour that is much needed and valued but the results tend to please fewer people. The reform will take time and patience. The following comments are within the context of how they will, presumably, affect Grand Bay-Westfield.

Pillar 1 - Local Governance Structure

- The boundary adjustment will increase the lane kilometers the Town is directly and indirectly responsible to maintain.
 - The impact will also be felt by Planning and Recreation.
 - The Fire Department is currently under contract to serve this area.
- DTI has numerous liabilities and limited resources; how sensitive will they be to local concerns?
 - During the past five years the Town has invested \$100,000 per year ensuring that River Valley Drive and Nerepis Road do not degrade too much.
- The report is quiet on assets such as sewage systems and recreation facilities.
 - There is a sewage system along Brittain Road.
 - The 'four corners' is a recreation facility with an outdoor rink.
- More reporting is to be required increasing the reporting burden on Administration.
- With an extra year for Council, there is concern about Council 'fatigue.'
- The Town has to have a byelection for one or two Councillors to represent the former LSD of Westfield West residents.
 - Currently one Councillor represents 993 residents.
 - The new population added is 1,472 residents.
 - This ratio is 148% which suggests that only one Councillor may be elected.
 - If the byelection is for one or two Councillors the result is the same: under or over representation within a Council elected at large.
 - The CAO will host two Candidate Information sessions for those residents interesting in serving on the Council of the new community.
 - The CAO will host an Orientation Session for the new Council ensuring that the new Councillor feels a part of Council, their views are heard, they understand

some of the issues facing the new community and that they learn good governance.

Pillar 2 - Regional Collaboration

- The increased scope of regional service commissions resembles a new level of government that may be best described as a regional government.
 - This includes land use planning.
 - There is the suggestion that Fire Departments within a region may be integrated.
- There is an increased onus on the responsibilities of Mayors and Councillors; many of whom have full time jobs, businesses and careers.
 - Will the position of mayor need to be a fulltime position?
- A regional strategic plan will enable the region to better understand needs and align resources accordingly.
- With the regional service commission participating in recreation through shared funding and governance, how will this affect the River Valley Community Centre?
- The province will need to provide more details regarding service standards.
 - The concern is that as some communities empty due to out migration they may be artificially supported beyond a sustainable level.

Pillar 3 - Land Use Planning

- Statements of public interest are common across the country and make the Town's
 efforts in numerous areas, such as conservation and climate change adaptation and
 mitigation easier.
- Inclusionary zoning bylaw is an excellent idea that is gaining greater acceptance across the country.
 - It will allow for more affordable housing and growth.
 - The concern is that the tools to encourage inclusionary practice is limited. Having more tax tools would have encouraged inclusionary practices.
 - It should be noted that as much as it may be viewed by some, there are other who may view this as a disincentive to development.
 - Many people like living in neighbourhoods with people like themselves.
- The Town has had a Development Officer dating at least until the 1980s. This is a common practice in this area and very much reflects subsidiarity. Will the Town be penalized for not joining the regional land use planning service?
- Greater collaboration between all levels of government in land use planning will result in more effective use of land.

Pillar 4 - Financing Local Governance

- The proposed ability to vary the rate of taxation of non-residential properties is a start.
 - The difference is modest on businesses in Grand Bay-Westfield with a reduction for one business dropping to 1.4 from 1.5 of a \$1,000.

- No variance was given for residential properties.
 - A separate class could be developed for condos/apartments, inclusionary zones, agriculture, rural residential, single-family homes, multi-family dwellings.
- The new grant formula proposal is a start and patience is required. No mention was made of identifying a funding pool nor of a transparent formula.
- Revenue from fines is helpful but limited.
- Enhanced Business Improvement Areas tools is beneficial but given the Town's very modest 'downtown' the impact is likely to be minimal.
- Municipal candidates campaign finances will be transparent.

Comparison to the Recommendations Submitted June 2021

Council submitted a letter to Minister Allain and Vibrant NB dated June 24, 2021.

- 1. Subsidiarity: this seems to be a guiding principle with an uneven application.
 - a.1 It appears that there will be a transition period to the end of incentives living in rural areas of NB.
 - a.2 Many LSDs have been entirely incorporated into larger urban centres with the more rural entities lumped together.
 - a.3 The Town of GB-W has been enlarged.
 - b. With the incorporation of the LSDs in the Saint John region into the town's of GB-W and Hampton, some of this issue has been addressed. Further, with the development of new entities there will be an elected body to negotiate with.
 - c. Given new information this request to expand boundaries soth should be withdrawn.
 - d. Non-residential property tax variances have been permitted. This is a step in the right direction.
 - e. Municipal representatives will be appointed to oversee SNB Assessment Agency; this has not been clearly defined.
- 2. Representative Regionalization
 - a. The democratic deficit has been largely eliminated.
 - b. Hampton is now in RSC #9.
 - c. Regional governments have been created.
- 3. Other Recommendations
 - a. The White Paper was silent on increased infrastructure investment in municipalities.
 - b. Regional land use planning is now a responsibility of RSC though it may be contracted out
 - c. A new grant formula is to be developed for 2021.
 - d. The White Paper was quiet about risk management for municipalities.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

All of the implications are not yet known.

- Establishing a regional government with tasks such as recruiting Administrative Staff, office, software, equipment, etc. will take time and money.
- The province stated DTI is still responsible for roads: these have not been defined.
 - What about the residential roads with the area such as Woodman's Point?
 - Are the residential roads private or public roads?
 - Are these up to municipal standards?
 - What condition are the roads and streets?
 - How are utilities to be transferred such as the Brittain Road sewage system?
 - How long will DTI bear responsibility?
 - With each of these points a contract will need to be approved by Council.
- There is a suggestion that land use planning should be a regional responsibility.
 - The suggestion contradicts subsidiarity.
 - The Town has had a Development Officer predating its incorporation in 1998; it goes back to at least the 1980s.
- With the new boundaries it is estimated, with the current tax rate being applied equally across the Town, revenues will increase \$1 million.
- The infrastructure costs are unknown for recreation.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Council of the Town of Grand Bay-Westfield continue to advocate for changes while permitted and determine if there are other aspects of the White Paper that may be adapted to Grand Bay-Westfield in a manner not first considered.

MOTION

There is no motion at this time.

CAO COMMENTS

APPROVAL

Department Head:

CAO: Jal dans Ward Date: 11/19/21

TOWN OF GRAND BAY-WESTFIELD BILLS FOR PAYMENT

	B	ILLS FOR PAYMENT								
	<u>D</u>	November 22, 2021								
	4.GG077777777777	DED (DESCRIPTION								
1	ACCOUNT NAME DILLON CONSULTING LTD.	GEN.CAP.	\$ 5.750.00	Professional Fees						
2	RC STRATEGIES INC.	GEN.CAT.		Professional Fees						
	We britain and in the	GBICIII.	14,317.50	T TOTOGOTOTIAT T CCC						
			11,017.00							
	BILLS FOR RATIFICATION									
		November 22, 2021								
	ACCOUNT NAME	DEPARTMENT	\$	DESCRIPTION						
3	ABLE WINDOW SHINE LTD.	TRANS.		Window Cleaning						
4	ADDENERGIE	BLDG.	862.50	Global Management Serv.						
5 6	A.L.P.A. EQUIPMENT LTD. ALZHEIMER SOCIETY OF NB	TRANS. LEGIS.		Service/Install Part Donation						
7	BARTER SIGNS & INSTALLATIONS	TRANS.		Bucket Truck						
8	BELL ALIANT - monthly	EMO		Telephone						
9	BELL ALIANT - monthly	SEW.REV./GEN.GOV.	770.89	Telephone						
10	BELL ALIANT - monthly	REC.		Telephone						
11	BELL MOBILITY INC monthly	GEN.GOV./ENV.DEV.		Telephone						
12	BELL MOBILITY INC. (4) - monthly BELL MOBILITY INC. (2) - monthly	SEW.REV./TRANS. REC./CUL.DEV.	361.79	Telephone Telephone						
14	C & J RYAN HEALTH SERVICES INC.	BLDG.	110.25	Epi Pen						
15	CANADA POST CORPORATION	GEN.GOV.		Postage						
16	CHANDLER SALES	TRANS.	77.28	Supplies						
17	CINTAS	BLDGS.	172.46	Medical Supplies						
18	CODIAC PRINTING INC.	TRANS.	654.35	Street Signs						
19	CUMINGS FIRE & SAFETY EQUIPMENT LTD. CURRAN. ALEX	FIRE		SCBA Bottles/Batteries						
20	DENIS OFFICE SUPPLIES	FIRE GEN.GOV.		Drivers Abstract Office Supplies						
22	DILLON CONSULTING LTD.	TRANS.		Professional Fees						
23	FORWARD ACCOUNTING SOLN'S	GEN.GOV.	1,207.50	Software Purchase						
24	FRONT LINE OUTFITTERS	FIRE		Uniforms						
25	FUNDY REGIONAL SERVICE COMMISSION	ENV.DEV.		Funding						
26 27	HUB INTERNATIONAL ATLANTIC LIMITED IRON MOUNTAIN CANADA CORP.	GEN.GOV. GEN.GOV.		Amendment - Insurance Shredding						
28	IRVING ENERGY DISTRIBUTION	BLDG.	1,210.73							
29	ISPIRE-INSPIRED TECHNOLOGIES	GEN.GOV.		IT Services						
30	ISPIRE-INSPIRED TECHNOLOGIES	TRANS.		IT Services						
31	ISPIRE-INSPIRED TECHNOLOGIES	GEN.CAP.	2,300.25	IT Services						
32	LINDE CANADA LTD.	FIRE		Cylinder Rental						
33	M & C FOODS INC. MYLES HOME HARDWARE	FIRE BLDG.	158.63	Meals Supplies						
34 35	NB POWER - monthly	TRANS.	10.254.01	Power						
36	NB POWER - monthly	FIRE	-,	Power						
37	NORTHERN BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE	TRANS.		GPS Monotoring						
38	NOVA FIRE EQUIPMENT LTD.	FIRE	822.57	Parts						
39	PERRY, MATTHEW	TRANS.		Professional Fees						
40	PERRY, MATTHEW	TRANS.		Professional Fees						
41	PRINT DIGITAL PRUDE INC.	FIRE LEGIS.	10.47 500.00	Tickets- Awards Ceremony						
43	RAY TEK - DIV OF READY JOHN, INC.	REC.		Rental - Hand Wash Toilet						
44	RCL BAYVIEW BRANCH #22	FIRE	55.00	Wreath						
45	SAINT JOHN FIRST CLASS CLEANERS	BLDGS.	4,283.35	Janitorial						
46	SCHRICK'S PLUMBING LTD.	REC.		Winterize Splashpad						
47	SCHRICK'S PLUMBING LTD.	BLDG. SEW.REV.		Repair Toilet						
48	SCHRICK'S PLUMBING LTD. SHADES OF GREEN LTD.	TRANS./ENV.DEV.	1,651.29	Sewer Backup Monthly Landscape						
50	SHADES OF GREEN LTD. SHADES OF GREEN LTD. (3)	VARIOUS		Monthly Landscape Monthly Landscape						
51	SHANNON, HEATHER	SPEC.EVENTS		Gift Cards						
52	SOBEYS FOODLAND	FIRE	57.44	Supplies						
53	SQUEAKY KLEEN	VARIOUS	3,835.76	Monthly Mowing						

Description List - November 22, 2021.xls Page 1 of 2

TOWN OF GRAND BAY-WESTFIELD BILLS FOR PAYMENT

BILLS FOR RATIFICATION November 22, 2021									
	ACCOUNT NAME	DEPARTMENT	\$	DESCRIPTION					
54	SQUEAKY KLEEN (3)	REC.	782.00	Clean up/Maintenance					
55	SQUEAKY KLEEN	REC.	74.75	Clean up Debris					
56	SQUEAKY KLEEN (2)	REC.	1,150.00	Maintenance/Remove nets					
57	TELUS	FIRE/GEN.GOV.	841.80	Telephone					
58	THE CRITTER GITTER	BLDG.	51.75	Pest Control					
59	THE WESTFIELD STORE & EATERY	FIRE	295.81	Coffee, Supplies					
60	ULINE CANADA CORPORATION	GRANT	1,029.14	Tables					
61	WEED MAN	BLDG.	89.70	Soil Sample					
62	YELLOW PAGES	GEN.GOV.	35.77	Advertising					
	BILLS FOR PAYMENT		14,317.50						
	BILLS FOR RATIFICATION		53,012.10						
	TOTAL BILLS FOR PAYMENT		67,329.60						

Description List - November 22, 2021.xls Page 2 of 2